C R D A Capital Region
Development Authority

Agenda
CRDA Board Meeting
Thursday, October 15, 2020
Go-To-Meeting

3:00pm —3:05pm e (Call to Order & Minutes

- Draft Minutes September 17, 2020 *
3:05pm —3:10pm e Mayors Reports
3:10pm - 3:15pm e Finance Report

- Monthly Financial update

3:15pm —3:30pm e  Venue Update
- Event and cost reduction reports

3:30pm — 3:45pm e Housing & Neighborhood Committee
- 88 Allyn Partnership Loan Modification *

- Project trends

3:45pm — 4:00pm e Executive Director
- Bushnell Partnership Planning *

4:00pm e Adjourn

* Vote item




DRAFT
Minutes
September 17, 2020




Capital Region Development Authority
100 Columbus Boulevard
5t Floor
Hartford, CT 06103
Thursday, September 17, 2020
3:00 pm — GoToMeeting
(The Board Meeting was held via GoToMeeting with public access)

Board Members Present: Chairwoman Suzanne Hopgood; Andy Bessette; Mayor Luke Bronin;
Joseph Giulietti; David Jorgensen; Alexandra Daum; David Robinson; Konstantinos Diamantis; Robert
Patricelli

Board Members Absent: Joanne Berger Sweeney; Seila Mosque"ll _:—:‘Bruno; Mayor Marcia Leclerc

CRDA Staff Present: Michael Freimuth; Joseph Gelerma Klm ? rt; Robert Saint; Terryl Mitchell
Smith; Anthony Lazzaro; Jennifer Gaffey ,

Guests: Melissa Ferrucci, CPA, Senior Manager, M *yBeth DelVeccma(_'

CPA Senior Manager and
Aneta Maselek, CPA, Manager :

Minutes

Robert Patricelli and appr: oved

Cohn Reznick Audit Presentation

Fiscal Year 2020 Audit and.Annual Renmt i R

The FY2020 Independent Audit Reports and Fmanmal Statements were presented collectively by the
team 1eplesent1ng Cohn Resnick LLP,/The following auditors presented the findings below: Melissa
Ferrucci, CPA Scmcn ManageI MaryBeth DelVecchxa, CPA Senior Manager; Aneta Maselek, CPA,

Managet

-The CRDA‘ tiiidit was comﬁtétéﬂ_witfll"é‘lii_i_z?ynqualiﬁed‘ opinion.
-The Annual Re’poﬁ completed é‘ind 1eady“f(')1‘ 'ﬁling upon apploval

Board members were asked if they had any questions for the Auditors.

Bob Patricelli asked to Venfy that'the State was guaranteeing support for the operating deficits of the
major venues through FY 21 CRI?)A s CFO Joseph Geremia responded that CRDA has been receiving
positive communication from OPM that the major Venue FY20 losses and the budgeted FY21 loses will
be funded through some type of deficiency funding, either when the legislature gets back in and
discusses budget adjustments or when they discuss budget adjustments in May of 2021. Deputy

Secretary Diamantis indicated that OPM is being supportive of some of the needs that are occurring.

Chairwoman Hopgood congratulated and thanked both the Auditors and the CRDA staff for the hard
work both teams put in to complete this process.

Annual Report
Michael Freimuth highlighted some points in the annual report.
- CRDA added management group RM Bradley to manage the CT Regional Market

| 3)




- Due to COVID, the operating subsidy received by the State for CRDA Venues is greater than the
tax subsidy this past fiscal year, not usually the case

- CTCC down 140,000 in attendance due to COVID related event cancellations after Mar.16,2020

- XL Center down 125,000 in attendance due to COVID related event cancellations after
Mar.16,2020

- Statutory goal of 3000 housing units, CRDA is currently at 1800 units, approximately 1300 are
operating, others are in construction

- Regional — Currently working on five projects in East Hartford and one in Wethersfield, as well
as working with West Hartford and Windsor Locks

The following motion was moved by Andy Bessette, seconded by David Jorgensen and approved.

“The CRDA Board of Directors hereby approves the CRDA Annual Repm t/Audit for F'Y2019-2020 and
the Stadium at Rentschler Field Audit for F'Y2019-2020 as pr esented

,\A §

Venue

Michael Freimuth and Joseph Geremia gave an upda,te 1ega1d1ng the FY2I MaJm Venue’s Operating
Recommendations/Options. % R
Background e e
- the budget adopted in June used app10x1mately %'16_ : tlon in events and attendance
- More events are cancelling as COVID continues to w1eak havoc with the venues throughout the
FY21 event load N, s REE
- The venues are running without mtemally genel ated 1evenues coming into the buildings
- Used the first and sccond quartms of appmpnahons to get th10ugh the first quarter

running the building :
futule 3 :

Joseph Geremia: p1esented numerous shdes Legaldmg the FY21 Major Venue’s Operating
Recommendatlons/Optlons

opportunities to open up the (€ C‘gm the second quarter, could you reopen befme July“?

Michael Freimuth indicated tha___ t-would take approximately 30-45 days to regroup, bring staff back,
retrain regarding sanitizing, air handling, food managers, security, etc. to operate the buildings and noted
that event schedules for the buildings are no longer predictable but not likely until next Summer due to
the preparation time major events require.

If it is the right event, then the parking garages and the hotels start to do better. |

Suzanne Hopgood commented that there is a huge impact on downtown Hartford with XL being closed.
Andy Bessette inquired whether CRDA has the ability to terminate or suspend contracts? Mike

responded that each contract is different and we would have to find out what rights CRDA has. Perhaps
a contract could be negotiated to extend it on the back side if it was suspended this year.

| (D



There is the affiliation fee with the AHL. There is a UConn contract at Rentschler. There are so many
variables with each venue.

Suzanne Hopgood asked if we learned anything from Dillon Stadium, being that it is outside? Mike
responded, yes however, it is a small venue on a far limited scale. We are learning basic lessons such as
how to manage people, how to screen, how to train staff, how to clean, how to keep people separated,
how to watch for masks, etc.

David Jorgensen said he would be interested to know what other similar venues are going through
nationally. Michael Freimuth replied by saying that most of it is anecdotal. We have had conversations
with Spectra, which manages buildings across the country and the world. What we’ve heard about the
AHL is a number of the teams have control of their buildings and other teams are tenants in the
buildings and that changes their strategies as to whether or not they pay themselves an affiliation fee or
whether they owe somebody and that is a big difference between the two different classes of owners and
whether they support an AHL season this year. AR

There are buildings within Connecticut that are trying}ftoj.o'pel'ate, howegvjejfr-_State facilities have a
different regulatory regime. There are also the travjél restrictions that impact booking events.

David Jorgensen asked if together, with other buﬂdmgs a negotlatlon could take place with the league to
ask if they could help. Michael Freimuth:explained that we dohave a credit due to losmg games because

of COVID, it will be rolled into this year’ "ibudget because it dld not get negotiated until after the last
Fiscal Year closed its books. Nk, S,

Alexandra Daum asked if Phase 3 were to 1norease capaolty would that make a difference or is there a
lack of demand. Michael Ereimuth. 1espondod by saying that the average attendance for the AHL was
apploxnnately 4000 howevel ‘the XL Cente1 can hold 15 000 people you could put the full average

we all have differis mg opmlons legaldmg that but its 1eally an unknown

Robert Patricelli asked—“lf the AHL season doesn’t happen and the we are closed till September 2021,
would that be sufficient tlme to undertake any of the capital renovations that are being looked at, and
this goes back to Mayor Bronin’ s'point made at the last meeting in which he would like to see us
consider shutting down in order to get some of the work done. Is that window long enough to
accomplish anything and will the money be available? Michael responded that CRDA is building bid
packages for the capital work to be done at XI.. Some work is expected to get done with the funds that
are already allocated to XI, however it is work that is back of house such as plumbing, electrical, etc.

Mayor Bronin stressed the point that he feels very strongly that CRDA should be moving very quickly
to aggressively do as much as possible while the building is severely restricted or shut down. If the issue
of ownership is a restraint of that, then it needs to be resolved and forge ahead as quickly as possible
because if the work is delayed, we will be disrupting the recovery of this building that so many other
businesses depend on.




Bob Patricelli asked Michael Freimuth to put together a hypothetical schedule that would lay out the
timing if we knew that the AHL was not going forward, what would have to happen regarding what the
Mayor is talking about? And how quickly could it happen? How long would the $100M build out be and
when would you have to have the land question resolved, etc. Mayor Bronin added that he’s not sure it
is an on/off switch flipped by the AHL because even if the AHL is playing that is still a much more
limited use of the building than usual.

Michael Freimuth indicated that a Venue Committee Meeting will probably be called to go over these
issues.

Mr. Freimuth noted that David Lehman was instrumental in getting the Governor engaged in landing the
Soccer Agreement. The found revenue is a real shot in the arm f01 Rentschlel Stadium.

Finance

CRDA CFO Joseph Geremia reported on the followmg ﬂnanc:lal update f01 September 2020.
Fiscal Year 2020 Audit and Annual Report S e

CRDA audit completed with an unqualified opinie;‘n'; ‘
Annual Report completed and ready for filing upon ap
Rentschler Field audit completed with an unqualified opinion

Fiscal Year 2020 Operating Statistics

CT Convention Center —
Stats:

July 2020

Cash Flow: Payables aged at90 to 120 days ($400 .000)
CRDA. advance of $750,000: :

Cash ﬂow Sept paymll only, Oct to Nov — all payables with Q2 appropriation

CRDA Palkmg F acilities — JuIy/Aug 2020
Aug stats: Utilization of 42% unfavmable to budget by 17%
Monthly rate customers unfavmable to budget by 1,300 at 3,800 YTD
Transient customers unfavorable to budget by 18,500 at 7,500 YTD
July ﬁnanmals RevenUe unfavorable to budget by $192,000 due to downtown opening
delay until Jan ‘21

Net Income $54, 000 unfavorable to budget

Church Street Garage - July/Aug 2020
Aug. stats:  Utilization of 58% unfavorable to budget by 14%
Monthly rate customers unfavorable to budget by 400 at 1,800 YTD
Transient customers unfavorable to budget by 1,750 at 925 YTD
July financials: Revenue unfavorable to budget by $33,000
Expenses $11,000 favorable compared to budget due to savings in utilities and security
Net Income $22,000 unfavorable to budget

XL Center - July 2020
Stats: no events scheduled until Oct. 2020 due to state COVID-19 restrictions




July financials: Operating expenses $42,000 favorable to budget due to personnel
savings

Cash Flow: Payables aged at 90 -120 days ($2.2M)

Payables: City: $1.16M, Spectra Corp.: $700,000

CRDA advance of $750,000

Cash flow: Sept. — no payroll, limited payables, Oct. — payroll and limited payables with
Q2 appropriation

P&W Stadium at Rentschler Field - July 2020
Stats: UConn football season cancelled due to COVID-19 restrictions
July financials: Expenses $17,000 favorable compared to budget due to personnel savings

Cash Flow: Payables aged at 120 to 150 days ($800; OOO)
Cash flow: no payroll or payables s
Payables: XL for payroll: $300,000, Spectlal‘.(;f ' $200,000

CT Regional Market - . T
Stats: 82 warehouse units and 1estau1ar1t Occupancy 78% with 13 tenants
Activity: Farmers® Market opened. f01 2020 season on May

July financials: Operating revenue of $64 000 slightly favmablcto‘budget
Operating expenses of $40,200 favorable to: budget due to savings in 1epalls &
maintenance Net income 01 $23 800 favmable 1,0 budget by $20, 900

Dillon Stadium — Calendar Year - July 2020
Calendar year revised opclatlng cxpcnsc budget of $250 000
July financials:: Opclatmg cxpenscs of $1’21 200 (48% actual vs. 58% of revised annual
budget) ;gg'i-: £ PR
Capital IGSGIVG balance $271 OOO

Central Utility Plant ( CUP) Conuact 8
NEMSI contract extensmn for CUP opcl atlons and maintenance

Anthcny Lazzaro w1ll addrcss later in the mectlng

Housing & Nelghborhocd Commlttee

Michael Freimuth gavc a bllef explanatlon regarding the Housing Loan Modifications. Highlighting the
fact that although pleeC'[S occupancy ‘has been running in the 90% range, during this COVID downturn,
the occupancy has now been running in the eighty percent range. The following issues have negatively
impacted the housing numbers 1/corporate leasing is down 2/student housing is down 3/internationally
employment is down.

Covid Related Housing Loan Modifications

Whereas the Board was concerned that the Covid pandemic could impact both the construction and the
operation of residential projects supported by CRDA and in anticipation of such impacts, the CRDA
Board of Directors at its April 16, 2020 meeting authorized the Executive Director with the approval of
the Housing and Neighborhood Committee of the Board to review and if need be modify CRDA housing

loans impacted by Covid on a case by case basis;
5 @




Whereas the Housing and Neighborhood Committee met on August 4, 2020 and September 10, 2020 to
review several requests from borrowers and has upon its review authorized modifications to several
loans that have been impacted by the pandemic;

Whereas the Housing and Neighborhood Committee approved the forbearance of interest for six months
for 201 Ann Street, a small housing project that experienced a sudden decrease in occupancy due to
Covid relocations of foreign tenants working in Hartford, such deferral of interest being $6000;

Whereas the Housing and Neighborhood Committee approved the forbearance of three months of
interest for 28 High Street that experienced delays in construction and consequently the lease up of the
property, such deferral being $13,145, and authorized the executive director to extend the conversion
date of March 2020 to October 2020 of the construction note into a permanent note;

loans as 111 Pearl Street was experiencing higher operating expenses in part because it was carrying
operating costs of adjoining but incomplete 101 Pearl, because lease up and occupancy were
underperforming due to Covid at 111 Pearl, and 1ecogmzmg that there was a need to attract more equity
to meet construction cost overruns and the slower lease up/stabilization of 101 Pearl, such increased
capital not being available from CRDA or other lendmg sources, the eommlttee approved a forbearance
of interest costs for 101 Pearl with such costs added to the principle of the 101 Pearl note totaling
$126,112, and modified its loan terms for 101 and 111 Peatl by decreasing the construction term interest
rate from 3% to 1% and establishing a modlﬁed interest rate on the mortgage from the current 1% per
annum W1th 2% acer umg to 1% peI a.nnum w1th the unde1 standmg that add1t10na1 equlty totahng $2.5

C'on'm?in‘e"'= :“r‘he Agency s Jo s tb 201 Arm Sr” 28 Hfgh Sn eel, and ]0]/]]] Pearl Street.”

Pratt Street Imtlaﬁve — Phase II

a multi-phase program that includes the conversion of the former
the renewal and expansion of the Temple Street Lofts and Student
Housing Complex; and new'develo ment on Talcott St (former G Fox warehouse/garage). The
developer partnership 1nc]udes Lexmgton Partners, Laz Investments and Shelbourne Global Solutions.

Background The P‘1aj'\ St Initiativ

Phase 1 was approved by CRDA on Oct 17, 2019 and the State Bond Commission on December 18,
2019 and calls for the conversion of two vacant properties (99 Pratt and 196 Trumbull) into 129 units of
new housing. CRDA loans totaling $12M are matched by $14M in conventional bank financing, $3.8 M
in equity and historic credits.

Phase 2 is the conversion/reconstruction of the former ‘townhomes’ on Temple Street originally
launched and operated as 42 student units into 88 conventional units as well as the addition of one unit
at the adjoining ‘lofts’ building (former Sage Allen store) for a total of 47 new units to accompany
another 77 existing units as well as upgrades to various building systems. This phase will be named

| ©




“Sage Allen Apartments and Townhomes”. There will be 10% affordable units within the new mix of
166 apartments.

Proposal: The buildings have been acquired and design is in place. The townhomes with 42 4BR units
(student configuration) will be converted to 88 units (58 studios, 13 1BR, 5 2BR and 12 4BR). The lofts
will be increased by one unit, updated with new common areas and general building upgrades, and will
contain 78 units (21 studios, 39 1BR, 18 2BR) for a total project budget of $32.17 million.

Development Budget:
Bank Financing $23,000,000
Equity 7,175,000
CRDA Loan 2,000,000
Total: $32,175,000

The following motion was moved by Andy Bessette, seconded :by'Bob Patncelh and approved.

ieconf igured into 79 studios, 52 1BR, 23 2BR, and I 2 4BR wn‘h 10% of the umrs fo. be affor a’able with
such loan not to exceed $2,000,000 with.an interest rate of 2, 75 % beginning upon construction
complet:on but no Iafer than one year amo; tizmg over 30 year,s and subor dmare to the first mor rgage

99 Pratt St/196 Tr umbull Stieet 2
$12M bridge and penn loans - 129 umts

Background; Phase 1 of the Prat‘t St Imtlatlve Was approved by CRDA and State Bond Commission in
October 2019 and encompassed two bulldmgs and both short term CRDA bridge loans and longer term
mortgages. The project rebuilds: two vacant historic properties across from the XL Center into 129
housing units while preselvmg/leposmomng the retail at the street level. CRDA financing was subject to
the securing of all add1t10nal funds‘including primary bank financing, historic credits, private equity as
well as presenting ﬁnal budgets/constructlon costs. In the interim, the final construction costs have
increased from $29.8M t0 $32.7M but ‘bank financing has been secured by the developers. Additionally,
the developels have completed the 1enovat1on of the smalle1 196 T1umbull buﬂdmg with private funds

Proposal: CRDA dollars would not increase from those already committed and would be used for 99
Pratt and its 97 units and adjoining retail space. Further, an interest to secure/guarantee the CRDA loan
in the adjoining 196 Trumbull will be created thereby giving CRDA the same level of collateral and
resulting number of new units as the initial deal. The CRDA assistance now would be configured into a
$3M bridge loan and a $9M permanent loan with the shorter term bridge loan being repaid upon the
project's initial refinancing (year 5) following primary debt and the remaining equity after historic credit
reimbursements. This is a change from the initial bridge loan at $5.5M that was to be repaid by historic
credits from both buildings. The initial permanent loans were based on cash flow mortgages with up to
$2.75% interest, 30 years with a 10 year term. This has been changed to a single loan with a minimum

1% interest, 30 year amortization, 10 year term. ‘




Combined two buildings (initial) 196 Trumbull 99 Pratt

129 units 32 units 97 units
Bank $14.2M $3.8M $10.4M
CRDA $12.0M - $12.0M
Tax Credits $287k $287k -

Equity  $6.2M $4.83M $1.3M

The following motion was moved by Andy Bessette, seconded by Joseph Giulietti and approved.

“The loans totaling $12M for 196 Trumbull St and 99 Pratt St providing 129 units will now be
reconfigured into two loans, totaling $12 million in the form of a short term bridge note of $3M and a
longer term permanent note of $9M for 99 Pratt Street and a security/guarantee interest in 196
Trumbull to CRDA to supplement the collateral of 99 Pratt. Such:loans will be amortized at 30 years
with a 1% interest rate with a ten year term, subject fo the $3M bi’f?;'cflge loan being repaid at the

refinancing of the primary note and equity for 99 Pratt Street, expected.lo be in year 5.”

Downtown North - Parcel C

270 units, 330 car garage, $11.8M CRDA note

Background: The CRDA board apploved a $1 1.8M loan tO‘RMS to be matched by p11vate equity
($9.9M) and conventional mortgage ($36M) to bulld out the first phase of DoNo. The loan was
approved at 3%, 30 yr amortization ten yeat term. CRDA note and that of the bank are inconsistent in
their terms and a request to adjust the CRDAloan from 10 years to’ 15 years but with the same
amortization and inferest rate has been made, rewewed by staff and the Housing and Neighborhood
Committee and apploved it the SeptembeI 10, 2020 mee’ung of the C(nmmttee

The following motlon was moved b Andy Bessette seconded by David Jorgensen and approved.

“The CRDA: Bocn d app ‘ __'ge of the terin. of u‘s‘ loan to RMS for Downtown North Parcel C
from 10 year" fo 15 years 0;meet 7 equesf of the primary bank lender.”

Regional & Economlc Developm‘ent Commlttee

Michael F 1e1muth 1nf01med the Board§= that CRDA has been working with the tenants of the CT Regional
Market to get signed leases as they. have not operated with leases in the past. All tenants with the
exception of one have been p ing. the new rate. The property will be on budget as Joseph indicated in
his financial report.

Executive Director Report

Anthony Lazzaro gave a brief explanation about the New Market Tax Credits (“NMTC”). CRDA has
agreed to grant the City of Hartford funds to engage companies in capturing federally awarded NMTC
allocations. These allocations will be regional and not exclusive to Hartford.




Grant-in-aid Agreement from CRDA to the City of Hartford

Recitals

WHEREAS, the Capital Region Development Authority (“CRDA”™) is a body politic and
corporate created to stimulate new investment within the capital region;

WHEREAS, the City of Hartford (the “City”), by and through its Mayor, Luke Bronin, has
requested a grant-in-aid in the amount of Thirty-Seven Thousand Five Hundred Dollars ($37,500) from
CRDA’s Housing Initiative Fund (the “Funds”);

WHEREAS, the Funds shall be used to assist the City, in its sole discretion, in capturing
federally awarded New Market Tax Credit (“NMTC”) alloeatmns

Agreement i

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the gomg and mutual 1ep1esentatlons warranties,
agreement, covenants, and guaranties set forth hele_: i CRDA and the Clty
hereby agree as follows: '

1. CRDA hereby agrees to provide a grant-in- ald in, the amount of Thn’ty Seven Thousand Five
Hundred Dollars ($37,500) to ths > City, to be used at the City’s sole dlSCletIOI’l to assist in the
capturing of federally awarded NMTC:allocations; -

2. This grant-in-aid shall be made i in one payment duung the pe11od beginning August 18, 2020
and ending December 31, 2020; W,

3. Such payment shall not commit or bmd CRDA to any futme funding of the City or its
endeavor to obtam NMTC allocatlons '

The followmgmotlon was moved by Andy Bessette seconded by Bob Patricelli and approved.

“The CRDA Bom d of Directors hef eby aulhorzzes the Executive Director to execute such MOU in
substantially the same jo: m as aﬁached hereto.’

CUP - EMCOR Extensmn: B

Anthony Lazzaro briefed the ‘Boatd'Membem about the need to extend the EMCOR contract for three to
nine months, The operating agreement expires in October and prior to COVID, this RFP would have
gone out in June however based on the buildings being shut down, we have migrated to more of an
automated system. Based on that, the CUP is proceeding on a time and materials basis because it is not
known what is needed in an RFP to service the three end users. This will give us time to assess what will
be needed to operate these large buildings for the next few months. An RFP will go out no later than
June 2021.

Bushnell South Planning effort

Michael Freimuth informed the Board that CRDA has been asked to join a planning effort that is being
put together by the Bushnell, the City and the developer. Mike has indicated that we are interested and
we may be asked to contribute to the effort. Ch’




Bushnell South Parking Garage
Garage is under construction.

Front Street

After ramping up the district with tenants for the past few years, COVID has really hit the entertainment
and restaurants in the Front Street District hard. Ted’s Montana Grill announced that they are closing
permanently. The Board will be kept posted.

Construction
Park & Main — groundbreaking ceremony
Wethersfield — ribbon cutting
Colt U —ribbon cutting

Parkville Market — ribbon cutting
Bracket Knoll — ongoing

Quirk middle School — ongoing

Adjourned 4:39




Mayor
Reports




Finance Report




100 Columbus Boulevard

C°R°D°A Suite 500
] _ Hartford, CT 06103-2819
Capital Region Tel (860) 527-0100

Development Authority Fax (860) 527-0133
www,crdact.net

Financial Update — October 2020

Fiscal Year 2021 Operating Statistics

CT Convention Center — Aug. 2020
Stats: no events scheduled until Jul. 2021 due to state COVID-19 restrictions
Aug. financials: Net Loss of $1.061M favorable to budget by $72,200 due to COVID-19 shutdown
Total year projection of $6.432M loss unfavorable to budget by $2.424M
CRDA advance of $750,000

CRDA Parking Facilities — Aug./Sept. 2020

Sept. stats: Utilization of 43% unfavorable to budget by 16%
Monthly rate customers unfavorable to budget by 1,800 at 5,900 YTD
Transient customers unfavorable to budget by 27,100 at 11,900 YTD

Aug. financials: Revenue unfavorable to budget by $321,200 due to facility limited openings thru Jul. 2021
Expenses $206,000 favorable compared to budget due to savings in utilities, security,
vehicle ID tag purchases, credit card fees, and repairs & maintenance
Net Income $115,200 unfavorable to budget
Total year projection $700,000 unfavorable to budget

Church Street Garage — Aug./Sept. 2020
Sept. stats: Utilization of 58% unfavorable to budget by 14%
Monthly rate customers unfavorable to budget by 600 at 2,700 YTD
Transient customers unfavorable to budget by 2,500 at 1,500 YTD
Aug. financials: Revenue unfavorable to budget by $51,200
Expenses $102,000 favorable compared to budget due to savings in utilities and security
Net Income $51,000 favorable to budget
Total year projection $264,000 unfavorable to budget

XL Center — Aug. 2020
Stats: no events scheduled until Sept. 2021 due to state COVID-19 restrictions
Aug. financials: Operating expenses $246,800 favorable to budget due to savings in personnel and
repairs & maintenance
Net Loss of $886,400 favorable to budget by $257,900 due to COVID-19 shutdown
Total year projection of $4.444M loss unfavorable to budget by $447,800

Cash Flow: Payables aged at 90 to 150 days ($2.988M), 81% over 120 days
Payables: City: $2.194M, Spectra Corp.: $330,000
CRDA advance of $750,000
Cash flow: Oct. 2020 thru Feb. 2021 — payroll and limited payables




P&W Stadium at Rentschler Field — Aug. 2020
Stats: Toronto FC scheduled for 6 games through Nov. 2020
UConn football season cancelled due to COVID-19 restrictions

Aug. financials: Operating expenses $97,700 favorable compared to budget due to savings in personnel
and repairs & maintenance

Net Loss of $311,100 favorable to budget by $95,800 due to COVID-19 shutdown
Total year projection of $993,300 loss unfavorable to budget by $41,200

Cash Flow: Payables aged at 90 to 120 days ($884,000), 47% over 120 days
Cash flow: limited payables and no payroll

Payables: XL for payroll: $320,000, Spectra Corp.: $240,000, State police: $90,000
CT Regional Market

Stats: 82 warehouse units and restaurant — Occupancy: 78% with 13 tenants
Activity: Farmers’ Market opened for 2020 season on May 2 operating through Oct. 2020

Aug. financials: Operating revenue of $118,000 slightly favorable to budget

Operating expenses of $135,100 slightly unfavorable to budget due to security services
and farmers’ market labor

Net loss of $17,100 unfavorable to budget by $4,900

Dillon Stadium — Calendar Year — Aug. 2020

Calendar year revised operating expense budget of $250,000

Aug. financials: Operating expenses of $148,500 (60% actual vs. 67% of revised annual budget)
Capital reserve balance: $261,000




Venue

Committee




Housing and Neighborhood
Committee




88 Allyn Partnership (aka 103-21 Allyn)

Background: Located in the former 'entertainment zone', the three-building complex known as
103-21 Allyn was acquired by Paul Khakshouri (owner of abutting Bond building) from the
Lewtan Family estate. The $21.1M project was funded by CRDA ($6.6M), Peoples Bank
(initially with United Bank) and federal and state historic credits. The property has been
completed and has now begun leasing its 66 units (and 3750 sf retail) but was delivered six
months late due to a variety of construction delays, in part caused by COVID (three week shut
down, material delays, smaller work crews), a sudden late summer storm/flash flood (that
damaged the basement requiring rebuilding and c/o delays), and a variety of historic preservation
amendments necessitated by problems/conditions discovered during demolition and
reconstruction that incurred considerable time for approval. As the building enters the rent up
period, it is contending with a slower market due to Covid but has rented its first four units with
other applications in review.

Proposal: The developer has asked for a three month deferral in interest payments to compliment
a like deferral from Peoples Bank. Such deferral will ease cash flow during the lease
up/operations period over the next fiscal quarter. The value of the deferral in interest is $49,500.
The CRDA Housing and Neighborhood Committee approved this deferral at its October 2, 2020
meeting.

Resolution: The CRDA Board of Directors approves the deferral of interesi on the CRDA
mortgage to 88 Allyn Partnership LLC for the property at 103-21 Allyn for a period of three
months beginning Oct 1, 2020. Such interest deferral being valued at 849,500, with such value
being added to the outstanding principle.




UOSSILULLIOY pUOg DIA 3MJ3531 YOOTS .

pund [pydo) BUISNoH Wotf YorTs 5

S{oap dpaay 1§ IS IU0L /M 8OTZ 5

pund *do3 Bujsnol woif ¥91s ,

piodal sajou

SWI00L [2]0Y 99T + |DIUSPISaL 153 YUN/NELS -
saspaj pub sysodap ,

0Z0Z/0E/6
3|qeploje L£7/ 3odew TILT +1/98 “3ne WY ZZTS N6ETS WZLES s L96T Asewwing
Hp9$ ueIpaw HS'ZeS
zZ0T 0Z0Z/0E/6 | 810Z/0T/6 | 8T0Z/0Z/6 wua3 A ST A OE %g| 0T/06 PIL'EVS WETTS M80ZS INZ'95S 0Lz W2, oued
Te0T ozoz/st/e | stoz/ozfé | sToz/oz/s oee uA| 02/08  [izess nr'ss HTIZS EEE 9zT ulel/yied
0z
asL 8T0Z/8T/ZT | 6T0Z/LT/0T | 1A og ‘e45/°7 Ueo| uiad/uoonnsuca| 02/08  |IEES WNZ1S JTETS NS'6ZS 621 13e1d
WS'9$ fueo| adpug INS'SS
asL 610Z/8T/CT | 610¢/01/T Aoz %e ueel[ 00T [do'ZsS WSTS 6925 NLS 9z WM 302
0Z0Z 28] 6T0Z/v/T | 8T0Z/TT/CT | 8T0Z/8T/0T Aoz %E ueojuuad| 00T [rEpS NTZSS JSZTS NS'TS 43 20UaIMe 0SZ-972
13 Ueo| 88pliq 2103SIH
%56 oz/et/sT0z | 8TOZ/TT/v | 8TOZ/9T/Z | LT0Z/1T/6 JAQZ %E ueol[ 00T  [Mog$ 30965 JLEES NS'TS 91 nguinil 00T
0Z0Z lled st0z/sz/8 | stoz/at/z | sToT/Zf Aog %e Ueel[ ozfos [ds'zes WB'TS MP'96TS  [INS'SS 8z YSIH 8T
%L6 Aupuay 810Z/Z/L | L10Z/62/TT | LT0Z/81/S "1A 0T %¢ ueo| wisd/uononnsuca] 00T [009% N88'TS JEBTS NS'ETS 87 YHon o3
120 610Z/1/8 | el0z/9Z/9 | 610%/1Z/€ “JA OE %E-7 Ueo| Wiad/uoioniisuos| 00T [x8'88s %008$ NLLES NS'ZS 6 SAIAN, £-50T
£T02/6Z/T1 | L102/81/5
%9 Bunusy 810Z/TE/OT | 6T0Z/9Z/9 810Z/8/8 “JA § %€ uea| wied/uonaniisuos| Q0T JEOTS RS JETES WT'T1ZS 99 UAllY E0T
L10Z/1/T | 9T0Z/8/IT
%16 Bujusy L10Z/8/TT | L10Z/Tl/S | 9tozfsfzl “3A OF 9%g ueo] wuad/uonaniisuoal 00T [DILY'6SS ESER 803 SS'TZS  [TOT Head TTT
%99 Juiuzy £10Z/8/1T | L10Z/ZT/S | 9T0Z/8/ZT “JA OE %€ ueo| wiad/uojanisuod| Q0T NS'ESS NYZ'ES APBTS WT'STS £ST Head 10T
%18 Bupjuay £I0Z/L/TT | 9T0Z/ST/TT | 9T0z/0Z/0T ueo| %T JAQE[ 00T  [ML'€E0TS EE MOBES NETS [ Yoy 18
%1z Bunuesy 9102Z/1E/€ | STOZ/TT/ZT | STOT/ST/OT ajou jsuon ‘aucd jazoy| 00T [ML'£9% INS'9$ T WS'6TS 96 uossipey
%6 Bupusy LT0Z/62/6 | 910Z/vE/E | 9T0Z/8T/T JAQZ ‘%e>ueo][ QOS/0L  [A99$ Wrs NBEES WE0zs 09 wnjAsy 0LE
ST0Z/8T/9
Tz0T 6T0Z0Z/6 | STOZ/ST/L | L10Z/0E/1T UAST %EuUROl| 00T  |MS9TS TR MSETS WSE'TS ot ulelN €8-6LZ1
910/6/6 9T0Z/9T/o
ST0Z/12/S
%00T Buuay S10Z/S¢/e | ¥10T/ST/L | 9T0Z/ST/C JAQE %E ueo)| 00T  [NS°T9S L0SE'6PES [ M90ZS WPE'TS g W3 Z-8€
¥10Z/6T/9
%00T 3unusy SToz/8/v | vrOZ/ST/L | pLOE/ET/S “JAQE %g-T ueo| wiad/uononysuoa| 00T [H0SS Nooes M90ES WE'TS 9 SIMaT 9E
%LE Bunuay S10Z/2z/6 | stoz/it/e | vroZ/et/e uADZ ‘%S sueojz| 0Z/og  |NSZOS LS N06ZS WE'SES ziT feuded 068
%L8 Sunusy ST0Z/0€/9 | vroz/9T/1T | ¥TOZ/ST/T ajou adedyow| 0z/08 [Mv'699 Wo's$ J6SES WT'9Z$ L IlpMaded
+102/82/T ©) peMsAu0a/SupueUl U0IIINISUCD
%6 Bunusy €T0Z/5/ZT | €108/12/9 | E€10Z/v/9 ¢OlH ?3pug| sT/s8 [Me'0is WS0'Z$ NETTS INGE'ETS 06T eipads/eysauog
%28 Bupuay ETOZ/ST/TT | €10Z/12/9 | €10Z/12/¢ UeoT pUZ INSZ'ES Aamba INSZ'ES| 07/08  |WE0TS [EES NEETS WEEFIS  [£9 uAlly 6£T
%61 Bunuay €T0Z/6Z/0T | €10Z/T1Z/9 | e10Z/st/v 000'0SLS 18 eBeBpow puz o3 usAuos| OOT  |N8'8ZS N0SLS/INB'ES |NZ0TS WSTFS sz puBI9/UUY T0Z
£10Z/12/€ ¢ IIG'ES 910U 115L00 [enul
%98 3upuay ¥10Z/82/€ | €T0Z/ET/E | ETOT/0E/T sdeBUow puz WZ'0TS| 0Z/08 |¥Z9$ WLLTS AI6TS NS'¥8$ S8Z URN LLL
T T T T  Rinbe s /4
[pasea Asuednang pasop uoissiwwe) | |eacsddy 2unPpnus yds win/é vayd ‘uyY yaud un/aaL 2al spun Paloid
yodiel puog 'Pd Ya¥) B/ #

panotddy SuisnoH yayd

20



ajos wouf aydiunid fo umopAng

0z0Z/11/6
192 Aewwung
020z 6T0Z/€T/8 | 810Z/1/9 | 810Z/ve/S e (YNIN) BeusH|  BIAL [dsE$ H0S$ ABTYS A0ESS 4 suioImeH zg-08
070z 6TOT/ET/8 | 8TOT/TI/S | 810Z/vT/S 4¥ (WNIN) s9woH a8eiusH|  Hv  |dsgs 0SS ASTHS 0E8S z auloyimeH §g-98
aios 0z0z 6T0Z/ET/8 | 8T0Z/1/9 | 810%/vE/S 3|qEpIoyY - SOWOH SFelBH| BV |M0SS 30078 0675 NSTTS ¥ Aswinosis
, UeoT 28puig "1sIH 000°002$ LTT-STT
%00T dunuay 8T0Z/L/S Y/N 9T0Z/8/TT | spund |ende) “JA g 230u uononasucd| BN [MOSS Moozs A0STS NBE'TS 4 wnjAsy Tz
%001 Bunuay 8TOZ/ET/9 v/N 8102/22/€0 spun4 [euded paysiuaiday| PN [M9se J0SYS AV8TS WYLETS |8 wnjAsy 682
910Z/8/21T
%LL Sunuay 810Z/¥Z/S | 9T0Z/0E/6 V/N pyuequn| BN OIS INSS NSTTS NZZS TIT auea( se|is
%58 Sunuay €T0T/LT/TT | £LOOZ/TT/TT v/N wesd o3al BN IT6E6S INZTS JOTES NL'GES 1Z1 33245 ol
Adxuednoog Aouednaog pason uoissiwwo) | |eacaddy 3in1onas nds nun/e vayo | wy vayd | wun/oal oaL spun 1a3foid
1981e] puog ‘Pd vayd HY/PIN #

s224nos Sulpund pauep - panoiddy SuisnoH vayd




000'0EE'SES 070Z/9/8
{paInIaxa JorIUOD uSisag y1ed DPISIBANY JO YIIOU Y[BMIBAR] aumydesay
‘pasnboe Anadold ‘predss ueo| a8pug PIOJIBH OF UCISURIXS JO Juswdoraasp | aseyd juosLIaAry
8102/02/6 ply-ui-juels N pooyoqydiaN STAd 000'000°T$
*ABMIDPUN LUORINIISUOD 810Z/1/9 | 8T02/¥T/s | 810T/TT/S SjUELS pue sueo?] pooyJogqyaian LTAd 000°005T$ vl BSJE THH WIIASY Ut GRS a0 awoH adejuay
) o JWOY 35eaJoUl 01 YNIN BIA 90URISISSY =
AeMIIpUR LUORINIISUOD 810Z/ST/L wesSoud Sujuieil smoja4 Ajnaas pooyloqysiaN (zd) udBN OTAd = 9'ES Tvd / |ooyds
40 vonejuBWaldw! JO} DDO00SS SPNIRU] |eJausD 9TAS = 6ES 000°005°LS ws'Z$ 190425 B|PpPIL J3UWIO] JO UORBAOLSY 3PPIA ULIND
pIoY U 8102/52/L mmwmwm UOREAOU | JUBWIISIAUL A3inb3 24399 9TA 000°005'2$ wg'eg | Hp|gIu0LRI03s 45 0OS'E / HUN § 40 LohEAOURY >=B_M_M 5 5
oM
paia)dwod uonInasueD 8102/0%/6 | 810Z/12/9 811 73 UOIIRIC3S9 2LI03SIY “40M JOLIBIX JO) JuelD [BJI2USD 9T Ad 000°05t$ wETS 1ul yieay 433US] YI2aH
Ayjeroads oju u|p|ing JUBJEA JO UDIRAOUY ¥eQ Ja3ieyd
“jed 3100 Juiloqudiau e speul
2q 03 sopeJ3dn |[BUORIPPY "22UBLIUS 8)IS MBU pue
*plojeH Jo A3 Y3l uoRsunfuon uj padojaasp 2q o3 sapesddn yqy pue apoo Buip|ing ‘san|1oey 12390]
UORBAOUS B 1|CD JO adeag Ianydie By pue (95H) dnoig PUE WO0J534 ‘suoissaau0a 03 sepetddn ‘wagshs
6T/€1/L uedaq sawen syods piojueH Yilm UeRounfuod Ul sUCp 34 03 uoj|ig 3B JHOM punos 1 Buny3)| ‘Suijess papesddn ‘siaysealq jo
810Z/9T/z | 8T0z/8/t | 8TOT/eL/L | SIPRAAUED UORONASUOD ploy pue SUOTIBAOUS. 935I3A0 0F YAND pooyIoqySieN LTAS 000'000°0T$ wprg |IuPwysIgInRd Jo juswasejdal ‘pjay Jo Juawade|dal wnipess uojia
Sulpn|aul ‘WnIpEIS JO UOREAOUSI puR JusWadeuely
302[01d 9005323135 oAy AURQ[Y juswidwed U0z SSIWoid) P SSaUIsng pu3j yHon FECET
e LT0T/6¢/TT | LT0T/ST/8 | L10Z/ST/9 pue Suipund 2UCZ BSIUOId |BISPSS YW 03 pasn spung pooysoqysiaN 9TAd 000°525% a8k 01 uonRUUE) Suljged JBuIRjUI p3Ads YySIH - |urelN faAy Aueqy
“BNU3ARJ |E3URL pajaalold Jo
9406 UBY) s53| Ou () Jo adeds 3aafo.d a|qesea) Jo %08 ueyd
55| OU 40 (B) S95BS] JUBU] JO UOINDAXS uodn Juaduiuod
SPUN "YHl %E Yyum [euded sl 10 |2 paAiadal sey spooyoqySiau [euasty Ae()
fuona|dwod Bupeau uciONSUC] L102/TT/S | LTOT/9T/E YY) (U WiS3 JeaA-0z B JSA0 BNURLOD [[BYS JuawAed (suoz asiwold) 000'00EV$ WLTES pue Aueqy Jeddn ‘ysesylion ay3 Junias Aiopes yims
*suoRNAUISIP pauinbad J3Y10 @ 82IAISS 3q3P UIl| 3814 JO pooyloqysPN 9TAd 4ANH uoREa.] ger pue poos Ayunwwo),
juawdied Jaye LYSeD B|qR|IBAR 13U JO %0L 3A19934 03 YAYD o3u1 A103984 JLI0ISIY JO UOKRAOUSY
1j1qe3s uodn Ajyluow pied 3q pue ¥dv 9T [BIIUL
ue guisn pa1e|naled 32IAJSS 1GaP WNWIUIW - URO| WE"HS
Y dde Sujpun; HOQ Suijieme Juauodwod e
_m>w.”:maox ._.um .H._Em cogu..‘:..rbm:ou 5 peou pasnbal 19n135U02 01 000’SZES 25N 01 poouJogydienN STAd 000°S55°TS wyesd 192416 yanieSnep uo sawoy [jouy BMpelg
; i : LT0Z/T/t | 910Z/8/ZT |9T0Z/0T/1T | way ‘siuewaaoidu/uojisinboe 3315 J0j JuelE 000'0E9S paidnado-4auma Ajie-0m) ¥T 4O UOIINISUCD
(pooyJoqusiau s||1H @njg) 383435 AqUEID LD
S1IUN PAUMO PUE [BIUDL MBU T6 JO LOIIONIISUOD sued sa|mog
-Aemaiapun Suisea] g 839)dwod | aseyd 9T0Z/0E/6 | 9T0Z/ST/6 uopjjouap Joj Juess wss pooysoqydian 9TAd 000'000sS wors g 309foud Suisnoy yun-gTH Jo uonjowsq
snieis 1encaddy pieog 3InPnns Spund Yayd unowy yaud Jal uondosag 1afodd
UOISSIUIWIOS) Yasd @ajHwwo)
puog

spalold pooyloqysiaN vadd



Regional
and
Economic Development

Report




020Z/vT/0T

pausdQ
‘PaAR38d Aouednag Jo aieatiued 6T0Z/Z/v | 6T0Z/0T/T |8T0Z/0Z/ZT ueoT 33plg / uopansuo) 00000S°ES v/N wr'sg 9y Ajunwwo] e Aqed
uoRIngsuad Uy 810Z/0z/6 ‘daid va¥o 000'000°LTS /N wiTs sdeseg adesen yInos j[auysng
3015 JO JUSWAC|IASP Y3IM SIUBIS[SSY 19115
40 UCI[CWaP PUB JUSWSIEGE JO UORBASIUIWPY aus
uoness ute) g Fuluoz go L Buinsind umoL efu ETOZ/ST/T e/fu JueLS SplayuMmolg g33d 000°000°T S e/u asL Auipem euonien - uOIFUIMIN
B1/€ paj|eauea Juawdce[aaap |ejy IBW 33{1N0 10} I0M IS
910Z/TT/L | 9TO0Z/ST/6 efu JUBI9 PY Uequn 000'000CT  § | Bfu PUE s1UaLUBAD W] BIMaNIISELU| |[BIAl UOZIIOK = PAOJUEH 15B3
saluadosd [eruspisal
92y} PUB UC[EIS 341} UMOL J3ULI0)
"UMOL L3im PaUBs NOW 810z/0z/6 e-Uj-uEID 000°000°T  $ | e/u e duipnpu] ‘sainpnas payEig sjuBWaA0dw| Aladold
* .IN0} 4O UONIIIOWaP PUE JUBWIIEYY pooysoqySiap - piojueH 1se3
Aldoys pa[npayas paqesip jo) Ape|naJed
5q 03 Jugaaw Uo-3ld "aimdesay 8102/0Z/6 ple-uj-juels 000'0FE'TS efu “y4ed Y3 UIYIM pue 0} ssa008
JUOILBALY YIvn paudis susWSaITy panoldw g saredas Bujpnpul Jjded JIAY JeID - pIojueH 1se3
“jied Janly 18945 03 SHUSWSACIAL|
eaJe u] Juawdo@asap
¥QyD pue syueynsucs uiuueld 810Z/1/9 000'005% efu [2RupIsal Jop mojje oy BzE|d S42pUN04 - pIOJURH Ise3
J2d0[3AIP "UMO ] LIIM BNUIUGCY SUDISSNISI] udisep 2deleg 1 Bujuueld Jalseln
jjooag mo| i Apn3s aue JaAIS DOJYED
J2A0 98puq pad Joj uoped)jdde pay (1afoud NgHI U} papuaWWIeIal spusWaAc.dw) sjuawanoadw
juawadeuely poold 4330 Yim Buoie ‘payelp g 6002/%/7 Joy INdO 01 uaaid spunj jo aauejeg) £8B'TT0'TS efu 2de0s39243s pue syjemssaln BUET JBNIS - PACLJRH I5e3
0} sdew Juaiwases "a3ajdwod udisap jjemapis pre-uj-juels “Sy|EAMBPIS MAU JO UO[IE|[EISU]
0Z0T J3quiandag palajduiod B3 UIMPOOD) Ul adajon
90 03 PIYRAXD JJOM || 5B pUe | 5BUY stoz/se/e | groT/Te/e ple-uj-uels 000°000'FS gfu JUSWIO[2ASP MBU 21RPOLUIOI0. 0 UIMPOOD 123U SIUBWRA0IALL]
saul| aBeujesp M3U JO UoRE|eISY| adeulelq - pJojiley 1se3
Jadojansp Jof d4y s
panssi umo] 39]dwos uog; 8T0Z/1/9 pre-Ul-uessy 000°000ZTS e/u xa|dinw Jauiloy jo JsuidoRaspa) SEWIBUD
9T0Z/CT/L owap ‘uonsinbay ASEIMOYS = PIOJURH 1583
a8eleg
Aenaapun siom 1 YHON 15 Ju0.td 38 syuawancidw) s3esed
WaaAIdW] UleIp WI0)S 38eles 810Z/52/L 3un3puadx® yqyD 0840 000'000°ES efu pajejed g Buyooidiaiem pue syuswanaaduy 10192235 Ju04d
28euleIp WIOJS ‘UOIDISIBIUL SNQUINICTJUo.d
e sjuawaacidul yemssos 1@ Juiey
ueuay
Buiixa 01 panquysip sase3| [BW.o4
{d4Y eln pajpajes JaBeuew Apadold map
!passsippe BT0Z/ST/ZT sjuawasoidiul 7§ uswdojanepal
dureq saduajjeyd Sujouelsip |ewos / 6T-0INOD 8T0E/ST/L pie-ur-uein 000'050°T$ gfu 4oy uBisap g ujuueld
{SpM0JD J3|[eWS 01 7/ Pausdo Jayely siawieq
smeis |enoiddy pieog |enoaddy 2IMINIg unowy N uonduasag
UDISSRULLIO) vaw) 22WWOD padeue vaud |Jedaal| Jdl
puog

s333l014 Juawdojanag 21wouod3 pue [euoiay Yayd




000°000°8T $

0z0Z/tT/0T

juzwdojaaap-a.d 0z0T/TT/L Aunb3/ueo 000'005°5$ wrzs A 303fo.d 25N pPaxIW UORINIISUOD MaU puejpoom/Aueqy
SJUBLLIYSIGINIaU JOIBIXS YYm ssaumo Apadold y2019
AUD yum 8T02/07/6 | 810Z/02/6 Aunba pue ueot 000°000'FS = N PooyJoqySISU 1SISSE 03 PUNy JO JUSWIYS||qesT peayMOLY - ONOQ
Aemuapun spalosd jo uonez
Aemuapun ssaooud ucidsas alls 8107/07/6 | 8T0Z/0Z/6 310U MOJ} YSed pue ueot 000'005°8S | wWLTTS N 21035 AJ82010 qnH AyijesH - oNoQ
snjels |encsddy pieog 31nPnas unowy yayd | ddL éauoz uonduasag aloag
uoIssiuLo) vayd asiwold
puog

s13aloud yuawdojanapay vayd



Executive Director




Bushnell South Planning Study

Whereas the City of Hartford, the Spinnaker Development Group, the Bushnell Theatre and the CRDA
have had discussions for the redevelopment of land and buildings within the Bushnell South planning
area, defined as that area between Buckingham Street, Bushnell Park/Elm Street, Trinity Street and
Hudson Street in Hartford;

Whereas the entities wish to advance the planning effort and incorporate market data, infrastructure
demands, neighborhood issues and state office operations into the overall program;

Whereas CRDA owns land, has developed a garage and is likely to acquire additional parcels/buildings
within the area in the near term;

Whereas it is expected that CRDA will be a source of financing for the overall development;

Whereas it is appropriate for CRDA to participate in the funding of such a study in partnership with
other entities engaged in the area;

Now therefore be it resolved, that the executive director is authorized to participate in such study and
subject to funds being available, to contribute up to 550,000 towards the overall planning exercise.




